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Message From the General Manager
Dear Clallam PUD Owners,
Dear PUD Customers and Owners,
Another year has swiftly gone by and as General Manager it is my privilege to
provide the introduction to the 2019 Financial Annual Report. I believe that 2019
was a good and productive year for the PUD and our customers. I also believe that
it is hard to separate our history from the work that was accomplished in 2019,
because the history feeds into the present, and accomplishments today could not
have been achieved without the great history that came before it. As in all years the
District has been busy and has much to be reported in 2019 as follows:
• Obtained a high bond rating from Moody – “Aa3 high rating”
• Development of a microgrid system in Sequim with solar, Electric Vehicle (EV)
charging, and eventually battery storage
• Completed the architecture and design of the Forks Operation Center with
construction to begin in 2020.
• State passed the Clean Energy Transformation Act (CETA) requiring utilities to
become carbon-neutral by 2030 and carbon-free by 2045. The District is
working on solutions to reduce cost to a minimum for customers. Increase
General Manager, Doug Nass
administrative and consultation costs may approach $200,000 per year by 2026.
• Continuing to looking for ways to reduce costs, such as had been done with internal integrated software system
and Advanced Meter Infrastructure (AMI) that will help with CETA and increasing number of EVs.
• Working on a new Carlsborg well and extending water to the Carlsborg UGA
• AMI installation over next 3 years provides many benefits/cost savings
• After 10 years of aggressive facilities revitalization and internal restructuring, our utility reached the high
standards to be designated by the American Public Power Association (APPA) as a Reliable Public Power Provider
(RP3). APPA has recognized us as a RP3 utility for the past 6 years with less than 14% of the 2,000 public utilities
currently holding this designation.
• The Port Angeles and Sequim payment offices were shut down and efficiently replaced with five kiosks
(leveraging technology). Future kiosks are planned at the Sekiu office and in the Main Office entrance.
• Washington State is required to ensure adequate fish passage at numerous State highway culvert locations within
our service territory. Our utility is obligated to incur the cost of utility relocations associated with culvert
removals and upgrades whenever our facilities are located within the WSDOT right of way.
• Beginning in 2019 the Electric Division has incorporated seven such relocation projects into the 10-year plan at a
cost that may exceed $800,000.
• The Water Division has incorporated at least four associated relocation projects that may eventually total more
than $1,000,000.
• Washington State Emergency Management as well as other public groups are emphasizing earthquake and other
emergency preparedness. Our PUD has established our Emergency Response and Restoration Plan (ERRP) and is
collecting associated emergency supplies that will cost almost $200,000 over a three-year period.
We have a lot on our plate and are committed to, as our Vision states, “Being the best utility for OUR customers”.
Thank you for your support and have a safe year!
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About Clallam PUD

Will Purser, Commissioner - District 1

David Anderson - District 2

Jim Waddell, Commissioner - District 3

Clallam County Public Utility District #1 is directed by a three-member Board of Commissioners elected by citizens
of the county. Each Commissioner represents a different sector of the county and serves a six-year term. The
Commissioners set utility policies and hire a General Manager to implement those policies. Washington RCW
Chapter 54.12 governs Public Utility District Commissioners. Commissioners’ meetings are open to the public and
start at 1:30 p.m. Meetings are held the 2nd and 4th Mondays, monthly, at the Carlsborg Main Office.

Vision: Being the best utility for OUR customers.
Mission Statement: Providing reliable, efficient, safe, and low cost utility
services in a financially and environmentally responsible manner.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Public Utility District No. 1 of Clallam County
January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019

Board of Commissioners
Public Utility District No. 1 of Clallam County
Carlsborg, Washington

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Public Utility District No. 1 of Clallam
County, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2019, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed on
page 16.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether

Office of the Washington State Auditor
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due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the District's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Public Utility District No. I of Clallam County, as of December 31, 2019,
and the changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Matters of Emphasis
As discussed in Note 15 to the financial statements, in February 2020, a state of emergency was
declared that could have a negative financial effect on the District. Our opinion is not modified
with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management's discussion and analysis and required supplementary information listed on pagt: 16
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express

Office of the Washington State Auditor
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an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary and Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as a whole. The accompanying
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by Title 2 US. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
This schedule is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to
the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements
taken as a whole.

OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 17, 2020 on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an

Office of the Washington State Auditor
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integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Pat McCarthy
State Auditor
Olympia, WA
November 17, 2020

Office of the Washington State Auditor
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PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT #1 OF CLALLAM COUNTY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
The Management’s Discussion and Analysis is designed to provide an overview of the financial activities of
the Public Utility District No. 1 of Clallam County (“District”) for the year ended December 31, 2019. This
section is intended to be read in conjunction with the basic financial statements and accompanying notes.
2019 Highlights
To align with the District’s mission statement of providing reliable, efficient, safe and low-cost utility
services in a financially and environmentally responsible matter, the District moved forward with several
major projects in 2019.
In November of 2018, the Board of Commissioners authorized a multi-year Advanced Metering
Infrastructure (AMI) upgrade and deployment of AMI meters throughout the District’s service territory. In
2019, the District initiated this multi-year project and by year end had installed more than 2,000 of the
eventual 32,000 electric meters. The District is conducting a slow rollout of AMI technology in a costeffective way that does not discard legacy drive-by meter reading investments before natural end of life.
The eventual net present value of the project over a 15-year period should exceed $10 Million through
reductions in labor, improved responsiveness and increased productivity.
In 2019, the District entered into an agreement with Bonneville Power Administration (BPA) to complete a
voltage upgrade of the Central Feeder, converting it from 69kV to 115kV. This project is scheduled for
completion in 2022. Along with this, design and engineering commenced on the final projects to upgrade
the transmission between Airport Substation and the BPA point of delivery in Port Angeles as well as a
concurrent voltage upgrade and rebuild of the Airport Substation. The District has procured equipment
for reconstruction and modernization of the final two system substations in 2021 and 2022 which will
complete the 2006-2022 Substation Modernization Program. 2019 also saw the completion of the first of
four phases to rebuild the region’s $7.2 Million back-up transmission line between Fairmount and Blyn, a
new distribution feeder to supply power to La Push, and distribution overhead to underground projects at
several locations.
The architecture and design for the last in a series of major facility building projects was complete by the
end of 2019. The construction of a $4 Million operations center in Forks will be initiated in 2020, replacing
existing facilities that exceed 60 years of age.
The District completed its first customer financed Community Solar project in August, 2019. The project
includes a total of 96 solar photovoltaic (PV) panels, each capable of delivering 327 watts for a total of
roughly 31.4 kW. The system’s generating capacity is approximately 32,000 kWh of energy per year. The
District is hoping to obtain future grant funding to develop an associated battery system that would be
able to charge from the solar PV system and would then deliver power to a critical communications
structure during an outage.
Along with the Community Solar project and in partnership with the City of Sequim, the District purchased
and installed a dual public use Electric Vehicle (EV) charging station capable of charging two vehicles
simultaneously. The City of Sequim will maintain the EV chargers.
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PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT #1 OF CLALLAM COUNTY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Overview of the Financial Statements
The District is a municipal corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of
Washington. The District operates and maintains three divisions: the Electric Division, the Water Division
(consisting of nine water systems), and the Wastewater Division (consisting of four sewer systems). These
three divisions are reported in a combined format. In accordance with the requirements set forth by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), the District uses full accrual basis accounting where
revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. The basic financial
statements are comprised of:
•

•

•

Statement of Net Position: This statement presents information on the District’s assets,
liabilities, deferred outflows and inflows of resources, and net position (equity) at year-end. Net
position is separated into three categories: net investment in capital assets, net position –
restricted and net position – unrestricted.
Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position: This statement reports
revenues, expenses and the change in net position for the year indicated and measures the
success of the District’s operations. It can be used to evaluate the level of cost recovery from
charges for products and services.
Statement of Cash Flows: This statement reflects the sources and uses of cash resulting from
operating, financing, and investing activities. It provides insight into the District’s ability to
generate cash flow and to meet its obligations.

The notes to the financial statements, presented at the end of the basic financial statements, provide
additional information pertaining to the District's operations and financial position, and are essential to
fully understanding the basic financial statements and are considered an integral part thereof.
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PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT #1 OF CLALLAM COUNTY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Condensed Statement of Net Position (in thousands)*
2019

2018

Change

% Change

Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources
Current Assets

$ 44,859

$ 42,278

$ 2,581

175,459

172,001

3,457

2.0%

12,062

12,167

(106)

-0.9%

232,379

226,446

5,933

2.6%

1,968

1,505

462

30.7%

Current Liabilities

12,911

13,545

(633)

-4.7%

Noncurrent Liabilities

50,751

52,583

(1,832)

-3.5%

63,662

66,128

(2,465)

-3.7%

2,871

2,592

279

10.7%

136,759

133,093

3,666

2.8%

5,030

4,940

90

1.8%

Capital Assets, net
Other Assets
Total Assets
Deferred Outflows of Resources

6.1%

Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for:
Debt Service
Rural Economic Development Fund
Future Capital
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

12

161

550

(389)

-70.7%

1,008

34

974

100.0%

24,856

20,614

4,242

20.6%

$167,814

$159,231

$ 8,583

5.4%

PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT #1 OF CLALLAM COUNTY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Condensed Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position (in thousands)*
2019

Operating Revenues

2018

Change

% Change

$ 69,975

$ 64,714

$ 5,261

8.1%

2,078

561

1,517

270.6%

Total Revenues

72,053

65,275

6,778

10.4%

Operating Expenses

63,995

61,433

2,562

4.2%

1,556

1,357

198

14.6%

65,550

62,790

2,760

4.4%

Net Revenue before Contributions

6,502

2,485

4,018

161.7%

Capital Contributions

2,081

1,210

871

72.0%

Change in Net Position

8,584

3,695

4,889

132.3%

Net Position, January 1

159,231

155,536

3,695

2.4%

$167,814

$159,231

$ 8,583

5.4%

Non-Operating Revenues

Non-Operating Expenses
Total Expenses

Net Position, December 31

Financial Analysis
During 2019, the District’s overall financial position and results of operations improved over 2018, with
total net position increasing 5.4%. The following is a comparative analysis of the change in net position by
major components of income.
Operating Revenue
The District’s 2019 operating revenues increased by 8.1% over 2018. In December of 2018, the District
experienced widespread outages due to major windstorms; consequently, revenue for 2018 was down.
The combination of the decrease in revenue in 2018 along with colder weather and rate increases in 2019
resulted in overall revenue from sales to retail customers increasing by $4.56 Million in 2019. Other
operating revenue increased by $703 Thousand primarily due to an increase in BPA Energy Efficiency
Incentives of $650 Thousand. The District’s electric customers increased by 274 billable meters and water
customers increased by 45 billable meters in 2019.
Non-Operating Revenue
In March of 2019, the Federal Emergency Management Administration (FEMA) declared Washington’s
severe wind storms in late 2018 a major disaster allowing the District to submit for reimbursement of
expenses to repair facilities damaged during the storms. During 2019, the District received grant funds in
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PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT #1 OF CLALLAM COUNTY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
the amount of $1.07 Million related to these expenses. This made up the majority of the $1.5 Million
increase in non-operating revenue.
The following chart is a graphical representation of the District’s 2019 revenues as a percentage of 2018
revenues:

Operating Expenses
During 2019, overall operating expenses increased by $2.6 Million over 2018, a 4.2% increase. The District
has a sales agreement with Bonneville Power Administration (BPA), a federal power-marketing agency, to
purchase power through September 30, 2028. In 2019, the District purchased 99% of its power through
BPA. BPA adopted a 5.4% average increase in wholesale power rates that went into effect towards the end
of 2017. There were no further increases in base rates through 2019, however BPA implemented a power
reserves surcharge on October 1, 2019 that effectively increased the District’s power cost by 2.07%. The
surcharge is designed to enable BPA to maintain at least 60 days cash on hand for its Power and
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PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT #1 OF CLALLAM COUNTY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Transmission business lines. Purchased power cost, the District’s largest operating expense, saw a $698
Thousand increase in 2019 due to increased demand from colder weather.
Operations and maintenance expenses increased by $1.3 Million in 2019. Employee benefits which are
recorded as part of operations expense decreased overall by $776 Thousand in 2019 due to the reduction
in pension expense related to the required adjustments for GASB 68 netting against other employee
benefit costs. Maintenance expense increased in 2019 by $1.2 Million, a 7.7% increase over 2018. This
increase was largely due to storm work orders related to the repair of District facilities being completed in
2019 and transferred to expense as they were closed
With District depreciable assets increasing in 2019 by $11 Million, depreciation expense increased by $344
Thousand in 2019.
The following chart is a graphical representation of the District’s 2019 operating expenses as a percentage
of 2018 operating expenses:

Capital Contributions
Revenues from capital contributions increased in 2019 by $871 Thousand. This 72% increase over 2018
was due to increased residential customer requested line extensions related to several new housing
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PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT #1 OF CLALLAM COUNTY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
developments along with some larger commercial customer contributions in 2019. Included in those was
a $127 Thousand contribution from Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe for commercial development of its facilities
around Sequim Bay.
Summary of Financial Position
In summary, the overall financial condition of the District improved during 2019 over 2018. Total revenues
including capital contributions increased by $7.6 Million and total expenses increased by $2.7 Million in
2019. The District’s ending net position was $168 Million, an increase of $8.5 Million over 2018.
District management monitors the effectiveness of its financial operations by measuring results against
the financial strategic objectives adopted by the District’s governing body. The financial strategic
objectives direct District management to develop financial plans that position the District for current and
future years while being fiscally responsible to the District’s ratepayers. The strategic objectives are as
follows:
• Provide stable rates - stable rates consist of no more than a 1% rate adjustment over the previous
5-year average;
• Cash reserves at or above 120 days cash on hand
• Cash balance within $500,000 of budget
• Maintain a 1.75 Debt Service Coverage Ratio (DSCR)
All objectives were met for 2019.
There were no significant restrictions, commitments, or other limitations that would affect the availability
of resources for future use in 2019 and 2018.

Capital Asset and Long-Term Debt Activity
Capital Assets
At the end of 2019, the District had a total investment in gross capital assets of $313.5 Million, which was
an increase of 4.25% over 2018. Projects in the Electric Division included distribution pole replacements,
underground replacements and transmission rebuilds including the completion of the Airport to Lairds
Corner Transmission Rebuild. Major asset purchases for the Electric Division included the purchase of a
Freightliner Manlift service truck, a Ditch Witch Directional Drill and the purchase of AMI meters in
support of the District’s roll out of its advanced metering technology initiative. Projects for the Water
Division included upgrades to water mains and services throughout all water systems including the
completion of the Olympic Highway Pipeline Upgrade in the Fairview water system which was capitalized
at a cost of $1.01 Million. Also completed was a main upgrade and relocation on East Scrivner Road in the
Fairview water system which was capitalized at a cost of $540 Thousand.
Construction work in progress increased $3.02 Million in 2019. Work on major projects included the
Gunstone Transmission Rebuild, the initial phase of the construction of the Forks Operations Center, and

16

PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT #1 OF CLALLAM COUNTY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
the rebuild of two Substations in Forks for the Electric Division and the Deer Park Pumping Project for the
Water Division.
Additional information on the District’s capital assets is presented in Note 3.
Long Term Debt
In April of 2019, the District’s Water Division issued $570,000 in Revenue Bonds. The bond proceeds were
used to finance additions and improvements in the District’s Water and Sewer Divisions. Also in 2019, the
Water Division obtained a loan from Washington State’s Public Works Board in the amount of $607,800.
No funds were drawn on this loan in 2019. No additional debt was incurred by the Electric Division in
2019. At the end of 2019, the District had $40 Million in bonds outstanding and $5.8 Million in Drinking
Water Loans outstanding, a decrease in total long-term debt of .76% over 2018.
More detailed information regarding the District’s long-term debt is presented in Note 5.
Bond Ratings
In 2019, the District’s credit rating was affirmed by Moody’s at Aa3.
Requests for Financial Information
Please direct questions relating to this financial report or additional financial information to the District’s
Controller at PO Box 1000, Carlsborg, WA 98324.
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PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT #1 OF CLALLAM COUNTY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

As of December 31, 2019
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Accounts Receivable, Net
Other Accounts Receivable, Net
Accrued Unbilled Revenues
Materials and Supplies
Prepayments
Interest Receivable
Restricted Assets
Debt Service Funds

$

11,518,188
15,008,012
4,978,731
763,394
3,803,673
5,712,031
999,570
74,248
2,001,447

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
NONCURRENT ASSETS

44,859,294

Restricted Assets
Rural Economic Development Fund
Debt Service Reserve Funds
Construction Fund 2018
Construction Fund Invested 2018
Total Restricted Assets
Utility Plant
Non-Depreciable
Depreciable, Net
Total Utility Plant, Net
Other Noncurrent Assets

161,182
3,444,672
63,821
8,198,893
11,868,568
12,093,049
162,139,085
174,232,134

Note Receivable-NoaNet
Non-Utility Plant
Preliminary Surveys

85,256
1,226,517
107,781

Total Other Noncurrent Assets
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

$

Deferred Outflow-Pension
Deferred Outflow-Other Post-Employment Benefits
Deferred Outflow-Loss on Refunding

1,419,554
187,520,256
232,379,550
1,236,371
481,841
249,471

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES

$

Accounts Payable
Customer Deposits
Accrued Taxes
Accrued Liabilities
Payables from Restricted Assets
Accrued Interest Payable
Current Portion of Other Post-Employment Benefits
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt

1,967,683

4,857,493
1,124,481
1,686,421
2,139,984
432,673
60,807
2,609,438

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

12,911,297

Revenue Bonds Payable
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Loans
Customer Advances for Construction
Accrued Other Post-Employment Benefits
Accrued Net Pension Liability
Unearned Revenues

37,915,709
5,303,966
438,827
2,353,796
4,692,089
46,608

TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

$

50,750,995
63,662,292

$

2,870,756

Deferred Inflows-Pension

2,870,756

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted For:
Debt Service
Rural Economic Development Fund
Future Capital
Unrestricted

136,759,205
5,029,755
161,182
1,008,278
24,855,765

TOTAL NET POSITION

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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167,814,185

PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT #1 OF CLALLAM COUNTY
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

For the year ended December 31, 2019
OPERATING REVENUES
Utility Sales
Other Operating Revenues
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

$ 67,643,367
2,331,651
69,975,018

OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchased Power
Purchased Water
Operating Expenses
Maintenance
Taxes
Depreciation
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

29,540,242
369,462
15,883,787
4,763,807
3,322,574
10,115,079
63,994,951

NET OPERATING INCOME

5,980,067

NON-OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES
Interest Income
Interest and Amortization on Long-Term Debt
Debt Issuance Expense
Gain on Investments
Unrealized Gain on Investments
Miscellaneous Non-operating Income
Miscellaneous Non-operating Expenses
Miscellaneous Income-Grant Revenue
Gain on Disposal of Plant
Loss on Disposal of Plant
TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES

728,101
(1,506,162)
(9,000)
91,710
43,203
128,954
(7,855)
1,074,772
10,920
(32,520)
522,123

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

2,081,350

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

8,583,540

Net Position, Beginning of the Year

159,230,645

NET POSITION, ENDING

$ 167,814,185

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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For the year ended December 31, 2019
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Received from Customers
Cash Paid to Suppliers
Cash Paid to Employees
Taxes Paid
Other Cash Receipts
Other Cash Payments
Net Cash Provided From Operating Activities

$

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and Construction of Utility Plant
Proceeds from Sale of Utility Plant
Capital Contributions
Proceeds from Revenue Bond/Drinking Water Loans
Principal paid on Revenue Bonds/Drinking Water Loans
Grant Revenue-Storm Damage Recovery
Debt Issuance Expense Paid on Capital Debt
Interest Paid on Debt
Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities

68,106,897
(38,836,981)
(14,346,150)
(3,143,996)
128,138
(7,855)
11,900,053

(13,422,054)
27,259
1,606,628
2,428,364
(2,498,337)
381,462
(9,000)
(1,772,578)
(13,258,256)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Note Receivable-NoaNet
Grant Revenue-Storm Damage Recovery
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities

(85,256)
693,311
608,055

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Income
Investments-Purchased
Investments-Proceeds
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

703,883
(6,845,172)
8,679,000
2,537,711

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

1,787,563

Cash and cash equivalents, including restricted cash - Beginning of the Year

23,600,641

Less Restricted Cash

(13,870,016)

Cash and cash equivalents - End of the Year

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT #1 OF CLALLAM COUNTY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Income

$

5,980,065

Adjustments to reconcile Operating Income To
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Add (Deduct):
Depreciation
Other Non-Operating (Receipts) Payments
Change in Accounts Receivable
Change in Unbilled Revenues
Change in Other Receivables
Change in Materials
Change in Prepayments
Change in Deferred Charges
Change in Accounts Payable
Change in Customer Deposits
Change in Accrued Taxes
Change in Accrued Liabilities
Change in Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)
Change in Pension Expense (GASB 68)
Change in Unearned Revenues
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

10,115,079
121,099
(403,911)
(978,511)
(570,862)
(418,601)
79,400
(23,516)
(906,792)
75,055
178,579
(190,524)
126,362
(1,292,161)
9,292
$

11,900,053

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH ACTIVITIES
- Customer installed services brought into plant and included in Capital Contributions
totaled $199,316 and had no effect on cash.
- The District had an increase in fair value of investments as of December 31, 2019 of $43,203.
- The deferred inflows and deferred outflows related to GASB 68 had no cash effect in 2019.
The pension deferred outflow was $1,236,371 and the pension deferred inflow was $2,870,756.
- The deferred outflow related to GASB 75 had no cash effect in 2019. The deferred outflow
was $481,841.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Reporting Entity
Public Utility District No. 1 of Clallam County (“District”) is a municipal corporation providing electric, water,
and wastewater (sewer) service. The District was voted into existence on November 5, 1940. In July 1944
the District acquired electric facilities and began providing service. In the following year, the District began
providing water service and in 1990 began providing sewer utility service.
The District is governed by a three-member board of elected commissioners and is comprised of an
electric system, nine water systems, and four sewer systems. The accompanying combined financial
statements include the financial position of the electric, water and sewer systems and the results of their
operations. For the purpose of these statements, all interdepartmental transactions for services rendered
between the systems have been eliminated upon consolidation.
District financing arrangements require the restriction of certain funds through debt covenants. Under the
authority of Chapter 43.09 RCW, the District is required to follow accounting procedures prescribed by the
State of Washington.
Basis of Accounting and Presentation
The accounting policies of the District conform to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as
applicable to proprietary funds of governments. The District adheres to the accounting standards and
pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), the accepted standard-setting
body for governmental entities. Accounts are maintained in accordance with the Uniform System of
Accounts for Public Utilities and Licenses as published by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC).
The District uses the full accrual basis of accounting recognizing revenues when earned and expenses as
incurred. Operating revenues and expenses are distinguished from non-operating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and delivering goods in connection with principal
operations of the District. All other revenues and expenses are reported as non-operating revenues and
expenses.
New Accounting Standard
This District implemented GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before the End of
a Construction Period in 2019. This statement was issued by the Government Accounting Standards
Board in June 2018 and has two primary objectives. The first is to enhance the relevance and
comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period. The
second objective is to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction
period. As a result of the implementation of GASB Statement No. 89, interest cost incurred before the
end of a construction period is no longer included in the historical cost of a capital asset reported but will
be recognized as an expenditure.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents
The District considers cash equivalents as short-term (less than three months), highly liquid investments that
are both readily convertible to known amounts of cash and so near their maturity that they present
insignificant risk of changes in value due to market forces.
Investments
It is the District’s policy to record investments at fair value. For various risks related to the investments see
Note 2.
Accounts Receivable and Provision for Doubtful Accounts
Management reviews accounts receivable and provides for estimated uncollectible accounts using the
percentage-of-receivables method. Accounts deemed uncollectible are transferred to the provision for
uncollectible accounts on a monthly basis. Customer accounts receivable is presented in the Statement of
Net Position net of the provision for uncollectible account balance. The District’s provision for uncollectible
accounts was $92,238 as of December 31, 2019.
Customer accounts receivable contain credit balances for advance payments from Average Payment Plan
residential customers. The total dollar amount of the credit balances was $456,094 at December 31, 2019
and has been reclassified as accounts payable.
Materials and Supplies
Materials and supplies inventories are valued on a weighted average cost basis.
Restricted Assets
Certain funds have been restricted either for compliance of debt covenants or through resolution. The
assets held in these funds are limited and classified to their use including debt service and economic
development.
Total Utility Plant, Net
Utility Plant Assets are recorded at cost and include both direct and indirect costs of construction or
acquisition. The District’s capitalization threshold for non-infrastructure plant is $5,000 with a useful life of
greater than one year. This threshold was increased from $1,000 in 2019. The cost of maintenance and
repairs is expensed as incurred; replacements and improvements are capitalized.
Composite rates are used for groups of infrastructure assets and, accordingly, no gain or loss is recorded
on the retirement of an asset unless it represents a major retirement. Initial depreciation on utility plant is
recorded in the month subsequent to purchase or completion of construction. Property, plant and
equipment are depreciated based on the straight-line method over estimated useful lives with the ranges
summarized in the table below.
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Electric Plant – Generation
Electric Plant – Transmission
Electric Plant – Distribution
Electric Plant – General

25 – 25 years
20 – 40 years
15 – 40 years
3 – 50 years

Water Plant – Distribution
Water Plant – General

5 – 50 years
2 – 40 years

Sewer Plant – Collection & Transmission

10 – 50 years

Utility Plant disposals are recorded to accumulated depreciation. For additional information on plant
assets see Note 3.
Non-Utility Plant
Non-Utility plant represents capital assets that do not directly relate to the District’s primary business
purposes.
Preliminary Survey Charges
Costs incurred for proposed projects are recorded as Preliminary Survey Charges pending construction of
the project. Charges relating to projects ultimately constructed are transferred to utility plant; charges
relating to projects abandoned are charged to expense. The Preliminary Survey Charges are presented as
noncurrent assets in the Statement of Net Position. As of December 31, 2019, the account totaled $107,781.
Major pending projects include a storage study for the Evergreen water system and the Morse Creek
diversion transfer study in the Fairview water system.
Compensated Absences
Employees earn Paid Time Off (PTO) as a benefit to their employment. The District accrues unpaid PTO in
Accrued Liabilities on the Statement of Net Position as it is earned. In accordance with District policy, PTO
may accumulate to no more than 1,000 hours and is payable upon separation of service. As of December 31,
2019, the District’s PTO liability was $1,358,961. A Compensatory Time Bank (CTB) is available to all
Bargaining Unit employees and runs yearly from May 1 to April 30. Maximum accumulation in the CTB is 40
hours per year and is solely comprised of 20 overtime hours. Any hours remaining in the CTB at April 30 is
cashed out at the employee’s current rate of pay. The balance in the CTB at December 31, 2019 was $7,712.
Revenue Recognition and Unbilled Revenues
Revenues are based on monthly cyclical customer billings. This system of billing results in earned but
unbilled revenues at year-end, which are included in the financial statements. Estimated earned but unbilled
revenues were $3,803,672 as of December 31, 2019.
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Capital Contributions
Capital contributions from customers are reported on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Net Position. The contributions consist mainly of line and service extension fees. The District reported
contributed capital of $2,081,350 for the year ended December 31, 2019. In 2019, contributions reported by
the Electric Division were $1,701,222. The Water Division had contributions of $375,558, and the Wastewater
Division had contributions of $4,570.
Pensions
The District is a member of the Washington State Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) cost-sharing
plan. For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position
of all state sponsored pension plans and additions to or deductions from those plans’ fiduciary net position
have been determined on the same basis as reported by the Washington State Department of Retirement
Systems. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms, while investments are reported at fair value.
Use of Estimates
Preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that may affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the reporting period. Specific estimates include allowance for doubtful accounts, unbilled revenue,
depreciation, pension and post-employment benefit obligations. Actual results may differ from those
estimates.
Significant Risks and Uncertainties
The District is subject to certain business risks that could have a material impact on future operations and
financial performance. These risks include force majeure, changes in normal weather, collective bargaining
labor disputes, changing local and national economic conditions, the financing and completion of significant
capital projects, changing federal and state laws, regulations and requirements, and market risks inherent in
buying of power.
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NOTE 2 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
Deposits
Cash on hand at December 31, 2019 was $8,750. The carrying amount of the District’s deposits was
$3,554,989.

Custodial Credit Risk – For a deposit, this is the risk that, in event of a failure of a depository financial
institution, the District would not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The District’s deposits and certificates of deposit
(CD) are entirely covered by federal depository insurance (FDIC) or by collateral held in a multiple financial
institution collateral pool administered by the Washington Public Deposit Protection Commission (PDPC).
The District does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk.
As required by state law, all District cash is deposited with Washington state banks and savings and loan
institutions or invested in obligations of the U.S. Government or governmental agencies, the Washington
State Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP), or other investments allowed by RCW 39.59. The District’s
Investment Policy prohibits investments in banker’s acceptances and repurchase agreements.
Investments
The District’s investments are subject to the following risks:

Interest Rate Risk – The risk that the District may face should interest rate variances affect the fair value of
investments. The District’s investment policy requires matching investment maturities with the anticipated
cash flow requirements. The policy limits average “time to maturity” to two years, excluding bond reserve
funds.
As of December 31, 2019, the average maturity of the investments are as follows:

Average Maturity

Fair Value

Less Than

1-5

1 Year

Years

U.S. Treasury

$

11,796,071

$

10,111,220

Sound Bank CD

$

3,211,941

$

3,211,941

FFSL CD

$

8,198,893

$

8,198,893

$

1,684,851

Concentration Risk – The risk of loss attributable to the magnitude of an investment in a single issuer. The
District’s investment policy requires diversification of investments by institution with the exception of the
U.S. Treasury and the District’s operating accounts.
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Credit Risk – The risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. The
District’s Investment Policy conforms with state law, which restricts investments of public funds to the
following:
• Debt securities and obligations of the U.S. Treasury, U.S. government agencies and certain other U.S.
government sponsored corporations
• CDs and other evidences of deposit at financial institutions qualified by the PDPC
• Investment-grade general obligation debt of state and local governments and public authorities
• Washington State Treasurer’s Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP)
At December 31,2019, the District had investments in U.S. Treasury Notes which were rated Aaa by Moody’s
Investor Services and AA+ by Standard & Poor’s. The District has a third-party safekeeping agreement for
investments through U.S. Bank.

Washington State Local Government Investment Pool – The District is a participant in the Local
Government Investment Pool (LGIP), authorized by Chapter 294, Laws of 1986, and is managed and
operated by the Washington State Treasurer. The State Finance Committee is the administrator of the
statute that created the pool and adopts rules. The State Treasurer is responsible for establishing the
investment policy for the pool and reviews the policy annually and proposed changes are reviewed by the
LGIP advisory Committee.
Investments in the LGIP, a qualified external investment pool, are reported at amortized cost which
approximates fair value. The LGIP is an unrated external investment pool. The pool portfolio is invested in a
manner that meets the maturity, quality, diversification and liquidity requirements set forth by the GASBS 79
for external investments pools that elect to measure, for financial reporting purposes, investments at
amortized cost. The LGIP does not have any legally binding guarantees of share values. The LGIP does not
impose liquidity fees or redemption gates on participant withdrawals.
The Office of the State Treasurer prepares a stand-alone LGIP financial report. A copy of the report is
available from the Office of the State Treasurer, PO Box 40200, Olympia, Washington 98504-0200, online
at http://www.tre.wa.gov.
As of December 31, 2019, the District had $13,625,571 invested with the LGIP. Since the pool is sufficiently
liquid to permit withdrawal of cash at any time without prior notice or penalty, equity in the pool is deemed
to be a cash equivalent. The District considers all investments with the LGIP to be cash and cash equivalents.
The District’s investment into the LGIP increased in 2019 as money from matured U.S. Treasuries was
reinvested into the LGIP to take advantage of more competitive rates and liquidity of funds.

Fair Market Value – The District’s investments on the Statement of Net Position have been adjusted to
reflect available market values as of December 31, 2019 obtained from available financial industry valuation
services. The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by
GAAP. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset.
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•
•
•

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets;
Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs;
Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

All of the District’s fair value measurements are classified as Level 1.
Summary of Deposits and Investment Balances
As of December 31, 2019, the District had $40,396,216 in deposits and investments.
Investment Type

Fair Value

Maturities

Cash and Cash Equivalents

11,518,188

Designated Cash

5,671,123

U.S. Treasury

1/30/2020

2,059,427

U.S. Treasury

4/30/2020

2,016,873

Sound Bank CD

5/26/2020

3,211,941

U.S. Treasury

7/31/2020

6,034,920

U.S. Treasury

2/15/2021

1,684,851

7/5/2020

8,198,893

FFSL CD-Construction Fund
Total Investments

$

40,396,216

Reconciliation of Statement of
Net Position
Cash and Cash Equivalents

11,518,188

Construction Fund 2018 Cash

63,821

Debt Service Fund

2,001,447

Debt Service Reserve Fund

3,444,672

Rural Economic Development Fund

161,182

Investments

15,008,012

Construction Fund 2018 Invested

8,198,893

Total

$
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NOTE 3 –UTILITY PLANT AND DEPRECIATION
Utility Plant activity for the year ended December 31, 2019, was as follows:
Balance 2018

Increases

Decreases

3,295,209
3,226,814
6,522,023

$ 8,841,943
8,841,943

$ 6,770,839
6,770,839

21,300,954
176,129,854
60,552,799
19,794
258,003,401

425,820
6,377,079
2,200,961
144,893
9,148,753

88,118
785,670
557,967
1,431,755

21,638,656
181,721,263
62,195,793
164,687
265,720,399

Less Accumulated Depreciation
Net Electric Plant

118,839,860
$ 145,685,564

10,009,121
$ 7,981,575

1,576,671
$ 6,625,923

127,272,310
$ 147,041,216

Water Plant Assets
Utility Plant-Non-Depreciable
Construction Work In Progress
Land & Land Rights
Total Non-Depreciable

$

2,066,883
441,547
2,508,430

$ 2,937,306
2,937,306

$ 1,976,919
1,976,919

$

31,617,300
1,207,363
32,824,663

1,984,209
61,862
2,046,071

73,561
13,009
86,570

33,527,948
1,256,216
34,784,164

10,702,525
$ 24,630,568

929,331
$ 4,054,046

75,216
$ 1,988,273

11,556,640
$ 26,696,341

Electric Plant Assets
Utility Plant-Non-Depreciable
Construction Work In Progress
Land & Land Rights
Total Non-Depreciable

$

Utility Plant-Depreciable
Transmission
Distribution
General Plant
Other
Total Depreciable

Utility Plant-Depreciable
Transmission& Distribution
General Plant
Other
Total Depreciable
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Net Water Plant
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Balance 2019

$

5,366,313
3,226,814
8,593,127

3,027,270
441,547
3,468,817
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(continued from prior page)

Sewer Plant Assets
Utility Plant-Non Depreciable
Construction Work In Progress
Land & Land Rights
Total Non-Depreciable

Balance 2018

$

Utility Plant-Depreciable
General Plant
Total Depreciable
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Net Sewer Plant
Total Utility Plant
Utility Plant-Non Depreciable
Construction Work In Progress
Land & Land Rights
Total Non-Depreciable
Utility Plant-Depreciable
Transmission
Distribution
General Plant
Other
Total Depreciable
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Total Combined Plant

10,492
31,105
41,597

Increases

Decreases

$

$

874,235
874,235

$

$

64,270
64,270

74,762
74,762

457,265
458,567

$

27,888
111,144

Balance 2019

74,762
74,762

$

3,685
3,685

$

3,313
75,134

31,105
31,105

945,312
945,312

$

$

481,840
494,577

5,372,584
3,699,466
9,072,050

$ 11,843,519
11,843,519

$ 8,822,520
8,822,520

8,393,583
3,699,466
12,093,049

21,300,954
207,747,154
62,634,397
19,794
291,702,299

425,820
8,361,288
2,337,585
144,893
11,269,586

88,118
859,231
574,661
1,522,010

21,638,656
215,249,211
64,397,321
164,687
301,449,875

129,999,650
$ 170,774,699

10,966,340
$ 12,146,765

1,655,200
$ 8,689,330

139,310,790
$ 174,232,134

The District has historically accounted for accumulated depreciation as prescribed by the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission (FERC) where the book cost of utility property retired or otherwise disposed of
together with removal costs less salvage is charged to accumulated depreciation.
The District follows FERC operating instructions for depreciation expense, which includes all classes of
depreciable electric plant in service except depreciation expense chargeable to clearing accounts.
Depreciation expenses applicable to transportation equipment and certain intangible assets are charged
to clearing accounts in order to obtain a proper distribution of expenses between construction and
operation. The depreciation expense charged to clearing accounts is distributed to maintenance and
operations cost centers and work orders associated with the usage of the vehicles during the year.
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The following table details the change in accumulated depreciation in 2019.

Accumulated Depreciation Reconciliation
Beginning Accumulated Depreciation
Increases to Accumulated Depreciation
Depreciation Expense on Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Depreciation Expense transferred to Transportation Clearing Account
Depreciation Expense transferred to Misc Intangible Clearing Account
Salvage
Substantially Depreciated Assets Placed in Service
Total Increases to Accumulated Depreciation
Decreases to Accumulated Depreciation
Book Cost Retired
Total Decreases to Accumulated Depreciation
Ending Accumulated Depreciation

$

129,999,650
10,115,079
784,121
27,013
11,220
28,907
10,966,340

$

1,655,200
1,655,200
139,310,790

In January 2016, the Board of Commissioners passed a resolution to dispose of surplus real estate including
the District’s former administrative headquarters, water department offices, and the water warehouse
building in Port Angeles. In August 2016, the water warehouse was sold, resulting in a gain on disposal of
plant of $201 Thousand. As of December 31, 2019, the remaining property was still listed with a local realtor
and recorded as non-utility property on the Statement of Net Position. In March of 2020, an offer from a
prospective buyer was extended. The offer is pending, but the sale is on hold due to circumstances
surrounding the COVID 19 emergency.

NOTE 4– LEASE COMMITMENTS
Operating Leases
The District is committed under various rental leases considered operating leases for accounting purposes.
The largest of these is an agreement with the Port of Port Angeles for the District’s warehouse facility
located in the City of Port Angeles. The District recorded lease expense of $106,355 for the year ended
December 31, 2019. Future minimum rental commitments for rental leases are as follows:
Fiscal Year Ending December 31:
2020
2021
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NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
The following changes occurred in the District’s long-term liabilities in 2019:
Original
Issue
Amount

Beginning
Balance
12/31/18

Additions

Reductions

Ending
Balance
12/31/19

Due Within
One Year

Electric System
2010 Electric Revenue Bonds
5.25% due 2011-2030

11,230,000

7,570,000

-

520,000

7,050,000

540,000

2014 Electric Revenue Bonds
5.0% due 2018-2034

14,225,000

13,680,000

-

575,000

13,105,000

600,000

2016 Electric Refunding Bonds
3.0% - 4.0% due 2018 - 2028

8,080,000

7,455,000

-

645,000

6,810,000

660,000

2018 Electric Revenue Bonds
2.0% - 5.0% due 2019 - 2038

9,170,000

9,170,000

-

305,000

8,865,000

310,000

3,975,761

-

282,052

3,693,709

Plus: Unamortized Premium
Water System
2005 Drinking Water Loan
1.0% due 2010-2025
2010 Drinking Water Loan

3,535,000

1,270,020

-

181,431

1,088,589

181,432

1.0% due 2015-2034
2011 Drinking Water Loan

2,047,525

819,010

-

51,188

767,822

51,188

1.5% due 2016-2035
2012 Drinking Water Loan

2,673,267

1,590,594

-

93,565

1,497,029

93,564

1.0% due 2018-2036
2016 Drinking Water Loan

3,073,935

650,753

1,851,929

89,832

2,412,850

141,932

649,935

-

6,435

322

6,113

322

570,000

-

570,000

37,000

533,000

31,000

1.5% due 2019-2038
2019 Water Revenue Bonds
3.0% due 2019-2033
Total Bonds & Loans Payable

$

55,254,662

$

46,181,138

$

2,428,364

$

2,780,390

$

45,829,113

Net Pension Liability

6,145,686

4,692,089

6,145,686

4,692,089

Total OPEB Liability
Compensated Absences

1,911,804
1,286,598

502,799
1,497,513

1,417,438

2,414,603
1,366,673

Total Long-Term Liabilities

$

55,254,662

$

55,525,226

$

32

9,120,766

$

10,343,514

$

54,302,478

$

2,609,438

$

2,609,438
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Remaining scheduled payments, as of December 31, 2019, of principal and interest on long-term debt are as
follows:

Years Ending
December 31
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025 - 2029
2030 - 2034
2035 - 2039
Total

Electric System
Principal
$ 2,110,000
2,200,000
2,280,000
2,370,000
2,465,000
13,040,000
8,810,000
2,555,000
$ 35,830,000

Interest
$ 1,616,400
1,525,456
1,429,244
1,329,256
1,225,194
4,321,544
1,695,069
263,875
$ 13,406,038

Water System
Principal
$
499,438
500,438
501,438
502,438
503,438
1,808,464
1,611,033
378,717
$ 6,305,404

Interest
$
81,230
75,146
69,032
62,888
56,715
200,771
84,809
5,710
$
636,301

Total
$ 4,307,068
4,301,040
4,279,714
4,264,582
4,250,347
19,370,779
12,200,911
3,203,302
$ 56,177,743

Electric and water debt payments were $2.5 Million in principal and $1.65 Million in interest in 2019.
As of December 31, 2019, the District has a total of $5.45 Million in restricted assets related to bonded debt
of the District. This represents debt service and debt service reserve funds as required by the bond
covenants.
As a minimum requirement of the District’s bond covenants, an operating revenue to debt service ratio of
1.25 must be maintained. As of December 31, 2019, management believes the District is in compliance with
all bond covenants including those regarding federal arbitrage.
Electric Debt
In December 2010, the District issued $11,230,000 in Electric Taxable Build America Bonds with an interest
rate of 5.25% maturing over the next 20 years. These bonds are treated as qualified bonds subject to a
credit payable from the U.S. Treasury equal to 35% of interest payable on each interest payment date. As
a result of sequestration, the 35% credit was reduced in 2019 by 6.2% to a rate of 32.83%. This money was
borrowed to finance various capital additions.
In October 2014, the District issued $14,225,000 in Electric Revenue Bonds with an interest rate of 5%
maturing over the next 20 years. The money financed improvements to the electric system including the
construction or additions to three buildings: the administration building, an engineering addition to the
Carlsborg operations center, and a meter/substation shop.
In July 2016, the District issued $8,080,000 in Electric Revenue Bonds with a coupon rate ranging from 3%
to 4% maturing through 2028. These funds were used to refund the District’s 2008 Electric Revenue
Bonds. The refunding of the 2008 bonds resulted in a loss of $356,015 which was recorded as a Deferred
Outflow and a premium of $1,048,570 recorded as a Noncurrent Liability on the Statement of Net Position
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both of which are being amortized over the life of the new bonds. The resultant net present value savings
to the District of this refunding was $770,202.
In August 2018, the District issued Electric Revenue Bonds in the amount of $9,170,000 with a premium of
$1,048,601. The bonds have an interest rate ranging from 2% to 5% and will mature through 2038. The
bonds were issued to finance certain improvements to the District’s Electric Division including the
construction of new operations and equipment buildings on the west end of Clallam County and the
reconstruction of two substations. A portion of the bond proceeds was placed in a debt service reserve
fund with the balance going to a bond construction fund as required by the bond covenants. As of
December 31, 2019, the 2018 bond construction fund had a balance of $8,262,714.
Water Debt
In 2005, the District entered into a State of Washington Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Loan with
the Washington State Public Works Board in the amount of $3,535,000 at an interest rate of 1% and a
term not to exceed 20 years. The final payment is due October 2025. The District closed out the loan in
2007 borrowing $3,444,447 of the available $3,535,000. Proceeds were used to replace an existing water
treatment plant.
In March 2010, the District entered into a second loan agreement with the Washington State Public Works
Board. The amount of the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund loan was $2,068,000 at 1% interest. The
loan amount was amended to $2,047,525 in January, 2013. Upon completion of the project for which the
funds were used in 2015, 50% of the principal was forgiven. The remaining balance is due in annual
installments through 2034. The money was used for the construction of wells in the lower portion of the
District’s Fairview water system.
In 2011, the District was awarded a third Drinking Water State Revolving Fund loan from the Washington
State Public Works Board. The loan amount was $2,673,267 with an interest rate of 1.5%. The District
executed this loan agreement in January 2013. Upon completion of the project in 2015, 30% of this loan’s
principal was forgiven. The proceeds of this loan were used for work on the wells in the lower portion of
the Fairview water system.
During 2012 the District was awarded a fourth Drinking Water State Revolving Fund loan from the
Washington State Public Works Board. The loan amount was $3,073,935 with an interest rate of 1%. The
District executed this loan agreement in February 2013. The proceeds of the loan were used to complete
the construction of the two well sites in the Fairview water system and was designated to be used for a
new pipeline and control valves. In 2016, the scope of work was amended to include the replacement of
temporary booster pumps with a permanent solution also within the Fairview water system. As of
December 31, 2019, the District had drawn $2,574,988 of the proceeds. The balance of the loan funds,
$498,947 will be received in 2020 as all projects associated with this loan are substantially complete and
awaiting final inspection.
In 2016, the District submitted an application for a fifth Drinking Water State Revolving Fund loan in the
amount of $649,935. The loan was approved in February 2017 with an interest rate of 1.5%. The loan will
be used to fund additional construction management on two projects within the Fairview water system:
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the Deer Park Road Pumping project and the Olympic Highway Pipeline Upgrade project. As of December
31, 2019, there had been no draws on the loan funds except for the loan origination fee in the amount of
$6,435.
In April of 2019, the District issued $570,000 in Water System Revenue Bonds with an interest rate of 3%
maturing December, 2033. The proceeds will be used to finance the replacement of a reservoir cover to
the Gales Addition Water Reservoir, the replacement of a wastewater lift station in the Sunshine Acres
sewer system and other capital improvements.
In October of 2019, the District acquired a loan from Washington State’s Public Works Board in the
amount of $607,800 with an interest rate of .63%. The funds will be used for preconstruction activities for
improvements to 19 water main projects and reservoir upgrades. This loan has a 5 year loan term that
may be converted to a 20 year term if the loan projects meet certain criterion. The term for this loan has
yet to be determined for the District and no funds were drawn on the loan as of the end of 2019.

NOTE 6 - PENSION PLANS
The following table represents the District’s aggregate pension amounts for all plans subject to the
requirements of the GASB Statement 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions for the year
ended December 31, 2019.
Aggregate Pension Amounts - All Plans
Pension liability
Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred inflows of resources
Pension expense (credit)

$

4,692,089
1,236,371
2,870,756
336,835

State Sponsored Pension Plans
All District full time and qualifying part-time employees participate in one of the following statewide
retirement systems administered by the Washington State Department of Retirement Systems (DRS),
under cost-sharing, multiple-employer public employee defined benefit and defined contribution
retirement plans. The state Legislature establishes, and amends, laws pertaining to the creation and
administration of all public retirement systems.
The DRS, a department within the primary government of the State of Washington, issues a publicly
available comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for each plan. The DRS CAFR may be obtained by writing to:
Department of Retirement Systems
Communications Unit
P.O. Box 48380
Olympia, WA 98540-8380
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Or the DRS CAFR may be downloaded from the DRS website at www.drs.wa.gov.
Public Employees’ Retirement System
Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) members include elected officials; state employees;
employees of the Supreme, Appeals and Superior Courts; employees of the legislature; employees of
district and municipal courts; employees of local governments; and higher education employees not
participating in higher education retirement programs. PERS is comprised of three separate pension plans
for membership purposes. PERS plans 1 and 2 are defined benefit plans, and PERS 3 is a defined benefit
plan with a defined contribution component.

PERS Plan 1 – provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Retirement benefits are determined as
two percent of the member’s average final compensation (AFC) times the member’s years of service. The
AFC is the average of the member’s 24 highest consecutive service months. Members are eligible for
retirement from active status at any age with at least 30 years of service, at age 55 with at least 25 years of
service, or at age 60 with at least five years of service. Members retiring from active status prior to the age
of 65 may receive actuarially reduced benefits. Retirement benefits are actuarially reduced to reflect the
choice of a survivor benefit. Other benefits include duty and non-duty disability payments, an optional
cost-of-living adjustment (COLA), and a one-time duty-related death benefit, if found eligible by the
Department of Labor and Industries. PERS 1 members were vested after the completion of five years of
eligible service. The plan was closed to new entrants on September 30, 1977.
Contributions
The PERS Plan 1 member contribution rate is established by State statute at 6 percent. The employer
contribution rate is developed by the Office of the State Actuary and includes an administrative expense
component that is currently set at 0.18 percent. Each biennium, the state Pension Funding Council adopts
Plan 1 employer contribution rates. The PERS Plan 1 required contribution rates (expressed as a
percentage of covered payroll) for 2019 were as follows:
PERS Plan 1
Actual Contribution Rates
January - June 2019:
PERS Plan 1
PERS Plan 1 UAAL
Administrative Fee
Total
July - December 2019:
PERS Plan 1
PERS Plan 1 UAAL
Administrative Fee
Total
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Employer

Employee

7.52%
5.13%
0.18%
12.83%

6.00%

7.92%
4.76%
0.18%
12.86%

6.00%
6.00%

6.00%
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PERS Plan 2/3 – provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Retirement benefits are determined as
two percent of the member’s average final compensation (AFC) times the member’s years of service for
Plan 2 and 1 percent of AFC for Plan 3. The AFC is the average of the member’s 60 highest-paid
consecutive service months. There is no cap on years of service credit. Members are eligible for retirement
with a full benefit at 65 with at least five years of service credit. Retirement before age 65 is considered an
early retirement. PERS Plan 2/3 members who have at least 20 years of service credit and are 55 years of
age or older, are eligible for early retirement with a benefit that is reduced by a factor that varies
according to age for each year before age 65. PERS Plan 2/3 members who have 30 or more years of
service credit and are at least 55 years old can retire under one of two provisions:
•
•

With a benefit that is reduced by three percent for each year before age 65; or
With a benefit that has a smaller (or no) reduction (depending on age) that imposes stricter
return-to-work rules.

PERS Plan 2/3 members hired on or after May 1, 2013 have the option to retire early by accepting a
reduction of five percent for each year of retirement before age 65. This option is available only to those
who are age 55 or older and have at least 30 years of service credit. PERS Plan 2/3 retirement benefits are
also actuarially reduced to reflect the choice of a survivor benefit. Other PERS Plan 2/3 benefits include
duty and non-duty disability payments, a cost-of-living allowance (based on the CPI), capped at three
percent annually and a one-time duty related death benefit, if found eligible by the Department of Labor
and Industries. PERS 2 members are vested after completing five years of eligible service. Plan 3 members
are vested in the defined benefit portion of their plan after ten years of service; or after five years of
service if 12 months of that service are earned after age 44.
PERS Plan 3 defined contribution benefits are totally dependent on employee contributions and
investment earnings on those contributions. PERS Plan 3 members choose their contribution rate upon
joining membership and have a chance to change rates upon changing employers. As established by
statute, Plan 3 required defined contribution rates are set at a minimum of 5 percent and escalate to 15
percent with a choice of six options. Employers do not contribute to the defined contribution benefits.
PERS Plan 3 members are immediately vested in the defined contribution portion of their plan.
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Contributions
The PERS Plan 2/3 employer and employee contribution rates are developed by the Office of the State
Actuary to fully fund Plan 2 and the defined benefit portion of Plan 3. The Plan 2/3 employer rates include
a component to address the PERS Plan 1 UAAL and an administrative expense that is currently set at 0.18
percent. Each biennium, the state Pension Funding Council adopts Plan 2 employer and employee
contribution rates and Plan 3 contribution rates. The PERS Plan 2/3 required contribution rates (expressed
as a percentage of covered payroll) for 2019 were as follows:
PERS Plan 2/3
Actual Contribution Rates
January – June 2019:
PERS Plan 2/3
PERS Plan 1 UAAL
Administrative Fee
Employee PERS Plan 3

Employer 2/3

Employee 2

7.52%
5.13%
0.18%

7.41%

Varies

Total

12.83%

7.41%

7.92%
4.76%
0.18%

7.90%

July – December 2019:
PERS Plan 2/3
PERS Plan 1 UAAL
Administrative Fee
Employee PERS Plan 3
Total

12.86%

Varies
7.90%

The District’s actual PERS plan contributions for the year ended December 31, 2019 were as follows:
PERS Plan Contributions
PERS 1
PERS Plan 1 UAAL
PERS 2/3
TOTAL

$

$

15,887
629,460
983,649
1,628,996

Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability (TPL) for each of the DRS plans was determined using the most recent actuarial
valuation completed in 2019 with a valuation date of June 30, 2018. The actuarial assumptions used in the
valuation were based on the results of the Office of the State Actuary’s (OSA) 2007-2012 Experience Study
and the 2017 Economic Experience Study.
Additional assumptions for subsequent events and law changes are current as of the 2018 actuarial
valuation report. The TPL was calculated as of the valuation date and rolled forward to the measurement
date of June 30, 2019. Plan liabilities were rolled forward from June 30, 2018, to June 30, 2019, reflecting
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each plan’s normal cost (using the entry-age cost method), assumed interest and actual benefit
payments.
• Inflation: 2.75% total economic inflation; 3.50% salary inflation
• Salary increases: In addition to the base 3.50% salary inflation assumption, salaries are also
expected to grow by promotions and longevity.
• Investment rate of return: 7.40%
Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 report’s “Combined Healthy Table” and “Combined Disabled
Table”, published by the Society of Actuaries. The OSA applied offsets to the base table and
recognized future improvements in mortality by projecting the mortality rates using 100 percent Scale
BB. Mortality rates are applied on a generational basis; meaning, each member is assumed to
receive additional mortality improvements in each future year throughout the member’s lifetime.
There were changes in methods and assumptions since the last valuation.
• OSA updated modeling to reflect providing benefit payments to the date of the initial retirement
eligibility for terminated vested members who delay application for retirement benefits.
• OSA updated COLA programming to reflect legislation signed during the 2018 legislative session that
provides PERS and TRS Plan 1 annuitants who are not receiving a basic minimum, alternate
minimum, or temporary disability benefit with a one-time permanent 1.5% increase to their monthly
retirement benefit, not to exceed a maximum of $62.50 per month.
Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for all DRS plans was 7.4 percent. To
determine that rate, an asset sufficiency test included an assumed 7.5 percent long-term discount rate to
determine funding liabilities for calculating future contribution rate requirements. Consistent with the
long-term expected rate of return, a 7.4 percent future investment rate of return on invested assets was
assumed for the test. Contributions from plan members and employers are assumed to continue being
made at contractually required rates (including PERS 2/3 employers whose rates include a component for
the PERS 1 plan liability). Based on these assumptions, the pension plans’ fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return of 7.4 percent was used to determine the total liability
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return
The long-term expected rate of return on the DRS pension plan investments of 7.4 percent was
determined using a building-block-method. In selecting this assumption, the Office of the State Actuary
(OSA) reviewed the historical experience data, considered the historical conditions that produced past
annual investment returns, and considered capital market assumptions and simulated expected
investment returns provided by the Washington State Investment Board (WSIB). The WSIB uses the capital
market assumptions and their target asset allocation to simulate future investment returns over various
time horizons.
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Estimated Rates of Return by Asset Class
Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plan’s
target asset allocation as of June 30, 2019, are summarized in the table below. The inflation component
used to create the table is 2.2% and represents the WSIB’s most recent long-term estimate of broad
economic inflation.
Target
Allocation
20%
7%
18%
32%
23%
100%

Asset Class
Fixed Income
Tangible Assets
Real Estate
Global Equity
Private Equity

% Long-Term Expected Real
Rate of Return Arithmetic
2.20%
5.10%
5.80%
6.30%
9.30%

Sensitivity of NPL
The table below presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 7.4%. Also provided are the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability if
calculated using a discount rate 1% lower (6.4%) or 1% higher (8.4%) than the current rate.

PERS 1
PERS 2/3

1% Decrease
(6.4%)
$4,458,050
$8,683,925

Current
Discount Rate
(7.4%)
$3,559,837
$1,132,252

1% Increase
(8.4%)
$2,780,520
($5,064,394)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the State’s pension plans’ fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued DRS financial report.
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions
At June 30, 2019, the district reported a total pension liability of $4,692,089 for its proportionate share of
the net pension liabilities.
Pension Liability
PERS 1
PERS 2/3
TOTAL

$ 3,559,837
1,132,252
$ 4,692,089
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At June 30, the District’s proportionate share of the collective net pension liabilities was as follows:
Proportionate
Share
6/30/18

Proportionate
Share
6/30/19

PERS 1

0.093531%

0.092575%

-0.000956%

PERS 2/3

0.115295%

0.116566%

0.001271%

Change in
Proportion

Employer contribution transmittals received and processed by the DRS for the fiscal year ended June 30
are used as the basis for determining each employer’s proportionate share of the collective pension
amounts reported by the DRS in the Schedules of Employer and Non-employer Allocations.
The collective net pension liability (asset) was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the actuarial
valuation date on which the total pension liability (asset) is based was as of June 30, 2018, with
update procedures used to roll forward the total pension liability to the measurement date.
Pension Expense
For the year ended December 31, 2019, the District recognized pension expense as follows:
Pension Expense
PERS 1

$

120,393

PERS 2/3

216,442

TOTAL

$

336,835

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
At December 31, 2019, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

PERS 1
Net difference between projected and actual investment
earnings on pension plan:
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date:
Total:

Deferred Outflows
of Resources
$
$
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of Resources

315,739

$

237,827
-

315,739

$

237,827
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PERS 2/3
Differences between expected and actual experience:
Net difference between projected and actual investment
earnings on pension plan:
Changes of Assumptions:
Changes in proportion and differences between
contributions and proportionate share of contributions:
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date:

Deferred Outflows
of Resources
$
324,393

Deferred Inflows
of Resources
$
243,428

28,993

1,648,098
475,055

55,169
512,078

266,344
-

Total:

$

TOTAL
Differences between expected and actual experience:
Net difference between projected and actual
investment earnings on pension plan:
Changes of Assumptions:
Changes in proportion and differences between
contributions and proportionate share of
contributions:
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date:
Total:

920,633

$

2,632,925

Deferred Outflows
of Resources
$
324,393

Deferred Inflows
of Resources
$
243,428

28,993

1,885,925
475,055

55,168
827,817

266,348
-

$

1,236,371

$

2,870,756

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the District’s contributions subsequent
to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended
December 31, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
Year ended
December 31:
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
Thereafter
Total:

Year ended
December 31:
2020
2021
2022
2023

PERS 1
$
(52,502)
(124,361)
(44,379)
(16,585)

$

-

2024

-

Thereafter

(237,827)

Total:
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$
(545,219)
(887,183)
(416,451)
(242,088)
(137,334)
3,905
$

(2,224,370)
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NOTE 7 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) are benefits to retired employees beyond those provided by their
pension plans. The following table represents the District’s OPEB amounts subject to the requirements of
GASB 75 for the year ended December 31, 2019:

OPEB Liabilities
OPEB Assets
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred Inflows of Resources
OPEB Expense

$

2019
2,414,603
481,841
126,362

General Information about the OPEB Plan

Plan Description
The District administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan to eligible employees and their
dependents. District employees are eligible for retiree medical benefits after becoming eligible for service
retirement pension benefits (either reduced or full pension benefits) under Plans 1, 2 and 3 of the PERS as
follows:
•
•

•

PERS 1: Employees are eligible for full retirement benefits after achieving age 60 with five years of
service, age 55 with 25 years of service or having 30 years of service.
PERS 2: Employees are eligible for full retirement benefits after achieving age 65 with five years of
service. In addition, they are eligible for reduced benefits after achieving age 55 with 20 years of
service.
PERS 3: Employees are eligible for full retirement benefits after achieving age 65 with 10 years of
service. In additions, they are eligible for reduced benefits after achieving age 55 with 10 years of
service.

Coverage for the retired employee must be continuous from his/her active employment to retirement.
Subsequent employment by the employee after retirement from the District will terminate the availability
of coverage for that employee, provided provisions of the Continuation Omnibus Budget Reconciliation
Act of 1985 (COBRA) are met. Spouse employment, which provides health coverage for a District retiree,
will also terminate the availability of coverage under the District’s health plan for the retiree, consistent
with COBRA. Former members who are entitled to a deferred vested pension benefit are not eligible to
receive medical benefits after pension benefit commencement. Survivors of members who die prior to
retirement are not eligible for medical benefits.

Benefits Provided
The insurance benefits offered to retirees are provided through the Public Utility Risk Management Services
(PURMS) which covers both active and retired members. Such benefits include insurance coverage for
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medical, prescription drug, dental and vision. Retirees are required to pay the full amount of the premiums
for their elected insurance coverage to the District on a monthly basis. In turn, the District pays PURMS for
the cost of covered claims for those retirees. The District’s explicit subsidy of the cost of claims paid over the
premiums paid in by the retirees for 2019 was $176,951.
The retiree costs are being implicitly subsidized by the inclusion of active lives in calculating the average cost
of the premiums. If retiree premiums were calculated based only on retiree health claims experience, the
calculated value would be higher for non-Medicare retirees.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms
As of December 31, 2019, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:
2019
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits
Active employees

49
147

Contributions
The OPEB relationship between the District and its retirees is not formalized in a contract or plan document.
Rather, the benefits are provided in accordance with a substantive plan. A substantive plan is one in which
the plan terms are understood by the District and the plan members. This understanding is based on
communications between the District and its employees and the historical pattern of practice in regard to
the sharing of benefit cost. The plan is funded on a pay-as-you-go basis and there are no assets
accumulating in a qualifying trust.
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Total OPEB Liability
The District’s total OPEB liability was measured as of December 31, 2018, and was determined by an actuarial
valuation dated January 1, 2019. The reporting date is December 31, 2019. GASB 75 allows a lag of up to one
year between the measurement date and the reporting date with no adjustment required.

Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs
The total OPEB liability in the January 1, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined using the following
actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement unless otherwise
specified:
Methodology

Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method

Inflation Rate

2.30%

Salary Increases

3.05% salaries are expected to grow
by promotions and longevity

Discount Rate

4.10% based on 20 year, tax exempt general
obligation municipal bonds with an average rating
of AA/Aa or higher

Disability

No disability rates are assumed

Election Assumptions

75% medical, 92% dental, 64% vision

Healthcare Cost Trend (after excise tax)

Dental Cost Trend

Year
2019-2020
2020-2021
2021-2022
2022-2023
2023-2024
2024-2025
2025-2026

Pre-65
5.90%
5.50%
5.20%
5.10%
5.50%
6.00%
5.90%

Post-65
5.90%
5.50%
5.10%
5.10%
5.00%
4.90%
4.80%

2026-2027
2027-2028
2028-2029
2038-2039
2048-2049
2058-2059
2068-2069
2078-2079

5.70%
5.60%
5.60%
5.50%
5.20%
4.90%
4.40%
4.00%

4.80%
4.70%
4.70%
5.20%
5.40%
5.10%
4.60%
4.00%

2087+

3.90%

4.00%

4.00% per year
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Assumptions for medical and dental trends were updated for modeling based on a published report by the
Society of Actuaries (SOA) on long-term medical trend using the “Getzen Model”. The trend rates assume
that over time, deductibles and out of pocket maximums will be periodically increased as medical trends
increase.
Demographic assumptions regarding retirement, mortality, turnover, and marriage are based on the most
recent pension valuation of the Public Employees Retirement System, a subset of the Washington State
Retirement Systems.
Provisions of the Affordable Care Act in effect at the measurement date are reflected in the projection of
benefits. The Total OPEB Liability as of the December 31, 2018 measurement date values the excise tax for
high cost or “Cadillac” health plans.
Changes in Total OPEB Liability

Changes in Total OPEB Liability

Increase
(Decrease) Total
Liability

Balance as of December 31, 2017

$

Changes for the year:
Service cost
Interest on total OPEB liability
Effect of plan changes
Effect of economic/demographic gains or losses
Effect of assumptions changes or inputs
Expected benefit payments

1,911,804

100,159
68,684
32,896
331,940
(30,880)

Balance as of December 31, 2018

$

2,414,603

Sensitivity Analysis
The following presents the total OPEB liability of the District, calculated using the discount rate of 4.10%, as
well as what the District’s total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1
percentage point lower (3.10%) or 1 percentage point higher (5.10%) than the current rate.
1% Decrease
3.10%
Total December 31, 2018 OPEB Liability

$

2,941,134
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Discount Rate
4.10%

1% Increase
5.10%

$

$ 2,007,724

2,414,603
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The following presents the total OPEB liability of the District, calculated using the current healthcare cost
trend rates as well as what the District’s total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using trend rates
that are 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current trend rates.
Current
Trend Rate

1% Decrease
Total December 31, 2018 OPEB Liability

$

1,944,402

$

1% Increase

2,414,603

$ 3,054,032

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
OPEB
For the year ended December 31, 2019, the District recognized OPEB expense of $126,362. At December 31,
2019, the District’s reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
OPEB from the following sources based on the December 31, 2018 measurement date:

Differences between expected and actual
experiences
Changes of assumptions
Contributions made subsequent to measurement date
Total

Deferred Outflows
of Resources

Deferred Inflows
of Resources

$

$

-

$

-

$

29,539
391,495
60,807
481,841

Amounts currently reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:
Measurement Period Ending December 31:
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
Thereafter

$

$
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NOTE 8 – RISK MANAGEMENT
The District is a member of the Public Utility Risk Management Services (PURMS) Self-Insurance fund, a
public entity risk pool organized December 30, 1976, pursuant to the provisions of the Revised Code of
Washington, Chapter 54.16.200, and interlocal government agreements. PURMS operates under Ch. 48.62
RCW, and the program’s general objectives are to formulate, develop, and administer, on behalf of the
member public utilities, a program of insurance, to obtain lower costs for that coverage, and to develop a
comprehensive loss control program.
PURMS consists of 19 members. The risks shared by the members are defined in the Self Insurance
Agreement. PURMS consists of three pools for liability, property, and health and welfare coverage. The pools
operate independently of one another, and all members do not participate in all pools. The District
participates in the liability, property, and health and welfare pools.
The pools are governed by a Board of Directors comprised of one designated representative from each
participating member. The business of the pools is conducted by Pacific Underwriters as Administrator, and
an Administrative Committee comprised of a representative of each member.
The pools are fully funded by its current and former members. Members that withdraw from the fund are
still responsible for their share of the assessments for occurrences while they were members. Likewise
terminated members continue to receive coverage for the time they were members.
PURMS and its risk pools are audited annually by the State Auditor’s Office. In addition, as required by State
regulations, PURMS submits annual audited financial statements to the State Risk Manager’s Office. PURMS
also engages an outside accounting firm to perform annual claims audits for each risk pool.
Settled claims for all risks have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three years.
Liability Risk Pool
The liability risk pool has a $1 million liability coverage limit per occurrence. In addition, the fund maintains
$35 million of excess general liability insurance over the $1 million retention. A second layer of excess
general liability insurance of $50 million is also maintained over the first excess layer of $35 million. The fund
maintains $1 million in directors and officer’s liability coverage with excess coverage of $35 million.
Liability assessments are levied at the beginning of each calendar year to replenish the reserves to the
designated reserve level or at any time during the year that the actual reserves drop to $500,000 less than
the designated reserve level of $3.5 million. In 2019, the District paid $104,706 in interim assessments.
Property Risk Pool
The majority of the property in the property pool has a self-insured retention of $250,000 per property loss.
Certain classes of property have higher retention requirements up to $750,000. In addition, the fund
purchases $200 million of excess insurance over the $250,000 (or higher) retention level. The deductible
varies, but for most classes of property it is $250.
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The designated property pool reserve balance is $750,000. Property assessments are levied at the beginning
of each calendar year to replenish the reserves to the designated level and at any time during the year that
the actual reserves drop below $500,000. The District paid $157,709 during 2019 in interim assessments.
Health & Welfare Risk Pool
The District participates in the PURMS Health and Welfare Risk Pool. PURMS provides health and welfare
insurance coverage for the employees of each of its members participating in the Health & Welfare Risk
Pool (“H&W Pool”) in accordance with the terms of the Health & Welfare Coverage of the SIA (“H&W
Coverage”) and the terms of each member’s respective Coverage Booklet provided to its employees.
The H&W Pool’s operations are financed by assessments of its participants. Each month, each participant of
the H&W Pool is assessed for: (a) the cost the H&W Pool incurred during the preceding month for the H&W
Claims for such member’s employees (“H&W Claims Costs”); and (b) for such member’s share of Shared
H&W Costs. “Shared H&W Costs” consist of administrative expenses incurred by the H&W Pool, premiums
for Stop-Loss Insurance, PPO Charges and Shared H&W Claims.
The exposure of each participant is limited by two different pairs of stop-loss points. For 2019, the Individual
Stop Loss Point was $325,000 per employee and the Aggregate Stop Loss Point was $23,722,524 for the
combined claims costs of the employees of all participants of the H&W Pool.
PURMS Notification to Risk Pool Members of their Respective Potential Future Assessment Shares of
the “Claim Reserves Receivable”
Annually, PURMS informs each risk pool member of its share of the actuarially-based “Claims Reserves
Receivable” for each risk pool in which it participates, determined in accordance with a 10 year look-back
period. The District’s shares of the Claims Reserve Receivable for each pool as of December 31, 2019 are as
follows:
Liability Pool
Property Pool
Health & Welfare Pool

$278,170
$22,886
$301,458

Unemployment
The District is self-insured for unemployment insurance and reimburses the State of Washington for any
claims paid. There were $25,147 in unemployment claims paid for 2019.

NOTE 9 - CONSERVATION PROGRAMS
As defined by the Energy Independence Act (EIA), the District is a large utility (greater than 25,000
customers) in Washington State and is therefore subject to the requirements of the EIA. The EIA requires
qualifying utilities to conduct a Conservation Potential Assessment (CPA) evaluating all of the technically and
economically feasible energy savings potential within the utility’s service territory over a ten-year period. The
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utility then has to establish an energy savings target equal to one-fifth (1/5) of the ten-year potential and
achieve energy savings greater than or equal to the target over the following two-year period. If the target is
not achieved, the utility would be subject to fines. The savings shortfall rolls over to the following biennium
and should be satisfied in addition to the new established energy savings target. This process is repeated
every even numbered year.
In December 2017, the District adopted a conservation target of
9,198 MWh for the 2018/19 biennium. Because of the
uncertainty of future targets and the ability to achieve them, the
District sets a strategic target 20% over the established goal to
provide some potential savings to carry forward to meet future
targets as allowed by the EIA.
In 2019, the District achieved 3,569 MWh of energy savings
towards the 2018/2019 target in addition to the 5,396 MWh
acquired in 2018. Along with that and according the EIA rules,
the District had excess energy saving from the 2016/2017
biennial target in the amount of 1,840 MWh that were rolled
over to apply to the 2018/19 target. 3,543 MWh of savings from
regional efforts managed by the Northwest Energy Alliance
(NEEA) were credited towards the District’s 2018/2019 biennial
target resulting in a total of 14,348 MWh achieved toward the
9,198 MWh biennial target as of December 2019. The savings
were achieved through local programs and regional efforts
coordinated by NEEA. Programs included residential and
commercial LED lighting, and ducted and ductless heat pumps as
well as small window retrofits and heat pump water heaters.
The District has an agreement with the Bonneville Power
Administration (BPA) to participate in the Energy Efficiency
Incentive (EEI) program. The EEI is a credit that is available to BPA
regional wholesale power customers that take action to further
conservation. Customer incentives paid by the District are
reimbursed by the BPA upon submission of qualifying invoices
and documentation. The determined amount by the BPA for the
District’s EEI budget for FY 2018-2019 (October 1, 2017September 30, 2019) was $1,540,650 less a bilateral transfer to
Grays Harbor PUD of $40,000 bringing the total EEI balance
available at the end of 2018 to $1,500,650. In 2019, the District
received bilateral transfers of EEI funds from Whatcom County,
Grays Harbor PUD and an unassigned allocation from BPA
bringing the District’s total EEI budget to $1,866,256 for FY 20182019.
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In October 2019, the District received their Implementation Budget from BPA for EEI funds in the amount
of $1,470,708 for FY 2020-2021. The District’s strategy for claiming EEI funds is to deplete the balance as
soon as funds become available from BPA resulting in the initial months of the two-year period receiving the
majority of the claims for reimbursement. Consequently, EEI incentives were significantly higher in 2019 than
in 2018 as claims were submitted in the last quarter of 2019 against the FY 2020-2021 budget. During 2019,
the District received incentives from BPA in the amount of $1,057,289 and the District’s energy savings
program related expenditures totaled $825,966.

EEI Funding for FY 18-19 and FY 20-21
10/01/2018 Implementation Budget FY 18-19
$
10/01/2018 Transfer to Grays Harbor
$
02/01/2019 Transfer from Whatcom County
$
06/10/2019 Transfer from Grays Harbor
$
07/11/2019 Unassigned Account from BPA
$
10/01/2019 Implementation Budget FY 20-21
$
Total FY 18-21
$

1,540,650
(40,000)
150,000
200,000
15,606
1,470,708
3,336,964

Community Solar
In 2019, the District installed Clallam County’s first community solar energy project. The 30-kilowatt solar
array was built at a disabled substation site located in downtown Sequim, Washington and consisted of
2,000 “solar units” that were made available to District customers. 82 customers signed up for the program
getting access to between 1 and 125 units each. Participants will see their investment pay off over time in
two ways: 1) a monthly credit on the customer’s electric bill for electricity generated by the solar array based
on their share of the project and 2) an annual Washington State production incentive of $0.14 per kWh that
the customer’s solar units generate through 2028.
With over 350 home solar power systems installed throughout Clallam County, the District’s customers have
shown a great deal of interest in renewable energy. Clallam County PUD’s community solar program helps
customers who, for a number of reasons, cannot take advantage of solar energy at their homes.

NOTE 10 - PURCHASED POWER AND WATER CONTRACTS
Bonneville Power Administration (BPA)
In 2009, the District executed a Load Following Regional Dialog Power Sales Agreement with BPA for the
period beginning October 1, 2011 and expiring September 30, 2028. This contract works within BPA’s
Tiered Rate Methodology providing firm power necessary to meet the District’s loads less generating
resources.
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Under this contract, the District has a contract-defined right to purchase an amount of power at “Tier 1”
cost-based rates, also called the High Water Mark (HWM). BPA conducts a study every two years to
determine the rate period high water mark (RHWM) for each utility, distributing a percentage-based
allocation of their Tier 1 system. The District will still have the right to have BPA meet their net
requirement load (the District’s load minus its own resources), but BPA will meet net requirement load
above the HWM at “Tier 2” market-based rates.
On September 30, 2011, the District notified BPA of its election to have all the Above-RHWM load for FY’s
2012-2014 and FY’s 2015-2019 served with Firm Requirements Power purchased from BPA at the Tier 2
Short Term and Vintage Rates, respectively. The District intends to serve its Above-RHWM load for FY
2012-2019 with a combination of its share and acquired shares of Packwood Hydro and BPA Tier 2 power
purchases. Tier 2 rates will be set to cover the full cost of the additional power BPA buys to meet those
additional loads.
BPA finalized the last biannual study to determine the RHWM on September 30, 2017, which showed that
the District’s forecasted energy needs had decreased for the FY 2018-2019 period. When a utility has
excess Tier 2 resources, BPA will remarket the excess energy on behalf of the utility. The Tier 2 energy
needs for FY 2018-2019 were initially based on an energy forecast performed in 2012, with the related
purchases made by BPA obligating the District on October 31, 2013. For 2019, BPA remarketed 8,713
MWh providing a credit of $200,979 on their monthly billings to the District.
Annual Amounts Priced at Tier 2 Rates (aMW)
2019
BPA Fiscal Year
Tier 2 Short Term Obligation
0.000
Rate per MWh
$24.97
VR-1 2014 Obligation
1.000

2020
1.072
$30.32
0.000

Rate per MWh
VR-1 2016 Obligation

$53.02
2.000

N/A
0.000

Rate per MWh
Remarketing Tier 2
Remarketing Value

$48.02
1.330
$23.00

N/A
0.000
$28.27

In September 2016, the District elected to purchase Tier 2 power at the Short Term rate for the 3rd
purchase period election (2020-2024) under the BPA contract. This was based on an estimate of the
Above-RHWM load exposure which is determined from both assumptions on future RHWM’s and a
forecast of the total retail load for FY’s 2020-2024.
The District purchases Resource Support Services (RSS) from BPA contracted through the FY 2019 rate
period to facilitate the integration of its Packwood Hydro generating resource.
Federal law requires Bonneville to recover all of its costs through the rates it charges its customers.
Bonneville makes various filings with FERC to confirm that rates are sufficient to cover costs. Under
Bonneville’s adopted power and transmission rate provisions, its rates are subject to revision in order to
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enable Bonneville to recover its actual costs of service. The rate provisions for the Load-Following Service
Product include a cost recovery adjustment clause (CRAC) and a dividend distribution clause (DDC).
Bonneville Power Administration responded to three 2007 Ninth Circuit court rulings regarding the 2000
Residential Exchange Program Settlement Agreements and their treatment in the 2002 wholesale power
rates. BPA’s decision was to return past overcharges to the region’s consumer-owned utilities and reestablish Residential Exchange Program benefits to most of the region’s investor-owned utilities. The
District received power bill credits of $708,957 in 2019 recorded as a reduction in power purchase cost.
The refunding of the Residential Exchange Program ended on September 30, 2019.
The District also entered into a contract with BPA for network transmission service effective May 31, 1997,
which provides adequate transmission capacity to meet the District’s annual system peak load. The
transmission contract expires on September 30, 2031.
Energy Independence Act (Initiative 937)
The District purchases renewable energy credits (REC) to comply with the Washington State Renewable
Portfolio Standard (RPS), part of the Energy Independence Act signed into law in 2006 for implementation
starting in 2012. A REC represents the legal rights to the renewable attributes associated with the
generation of one MWh of qualified renewable energy.
For 2019, the State RPS mandated the District to purchase qualifying renewable resources or the
equivalent RECs based on 9% of the total retail load, resulting in a compliance target of 57,763 MWh. The
District has current and future contracts for the distribution of RECs with Bonneville Power Administration,
Raft River Energy, and Bonneville Environmental Foundation. The qualifying fuel sources used for
compliance are wind, geothermal, and biogas (dairy digesters). The District paid a total of $897,912 for the
purchase of RECs to meet the regulatory obligation.
Water
The District is a party to a "Wholesale Water Contract" with the City of Port Angeles (City) through August
16, 2036. The rates are tied to the City’s Residential Rate Structure. Gales Addition Reservoir is 89% of the
cost per 100 cubic feet under the City’s residential rate and the Baker Street Intertie is 85% of the cost per
100 cubic feet under the City’s residential rate. Water rates for 2019 were as follows:
Gales Addition Reservoir-Roundtree Intertie (High Zone)
Jan 2019 – Dec 2019 billing cycle

$2.2615/100 cubic feet/month

Baker Street Intertie (Low Zone)
Jan 2019 – Dec 2019 billing cycle

$2.2000/100 cubic feet/month

The District’s purchased water expense under this contract was $369,462 in 2019.
In early 2019, a change in water system pressure from an unknown issue caused water to begin flowing
backwards through the City of Port Angeles’ water meter at the Baker Street intertie. This caused inaccurate
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readings on the Baker Street meter and an increase in consumption at the Round Tree intertie meter. A
dispute between the District and the City of Port Angeles ensued over the validity of several purchased
water invoices issued to the District. Throughout 2019, the Water Department attempted to resolve the issue
with the City. Unfortunately, the City went through extensive staffing changes during this period of time
making communication difficult and no resolution has been determined. The disputed amount for the
invoices in question is $14,767. Discussions are continuing with the City of Port Angeles and the District over
this matter.

NOTE 11 - ASSOCIATION WITH ENERGY NORTHWEST
Energy Northwest (formerly Washington Public Power Supply System [WPPSS]) is a Washington municipal
corporation which has acted as a joint operating agency for various power supply initiatives in the
Northwest. The District was a member until August 1984 when it withdrew its membership. The District
rejoined Energy Northwest and became a member in May 2008.
The District has remained contractually interested in the following projects:
Energy Northwest Nuclear Projects No. 1, 2, and 3
The District has entered into “net billing agreements” with Energy Northwest and BPA. Under terms of
these agreements, the District has purchased a maximum of 1.157%, 1.769%, and 1.001% of the capability
of Energy Northwest’s Nuclear Project No. 1, Project No. 2 (Columbia Generating Station) and Energy
Northwest’s 70% ownership share of its Nuclear Project No. 3, respectively, and has sold this capability to
BPA. BPA is unconditionally obligated to pay the District, and the District is unconditionally obligated to
pay Energy Northwest, the pro rata share of the total annual costs of each project. This includes the debt
service on revenue bonds issued to finance the project whether the projects are completed, operable or
operating and notwithstanding the suspension, reduction, or curtailment of the projects’ output. The
District’s respective shares may be increased by not more than 25% upon default of other public agency
participants.
In September 2018, Energy Northwest’s CEO presented information on the Columbia Generating Station
(CGS) and the project participants’ obligations. According to the presentation, participants’ obligations will
continue so long as the CGS is operable, or if CGS bonds, obligations, and liabilities are outstanding. The
current operating license is valid until 2043, and assuming the current decommissioning plan is followed,
site restoration is anticipated to be complete by 2105. Currently, outstanding bonds mature no later than
July 2044.
Packwood Lake Hydroelectric Project
The District is a 7% participant in Energy Northwest’s 27.5 MW Packwood Project, located in the Cascade
Mountains south of Mount Rainier. The Packwood Agreement with Energy Northwest obligates
participants to pay annual costs and receive actual project output.
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In 2011, the District signed agreements with Kittitas, Ferry, Skamania, and Wahkiakum PUD’s acquiring
their share of the project output and increasing its total share to 10.25%. The District will bring its share of
output to load. The District’s cost for the share of output for participation in Packwood was $295,935 for
2019.
The Project’s 50-year license had expired in 2010 and the Project was granted a continuance to operate
under the existing license on a year-to-year basis until the new license was issued. FERC approved a 40year operating license effective 10/1/2018. Energy Northwest proposes no capacity or facility additions to
the project but will make several operational changes to enhance aquatic habitat.

NOTE 12 – PARTICIPATION IN NORTHWEST OPEN ACCESS NETWORK, INC. (NoaNet)
The District, along with other Washington State public entities, is a member of Northwest Open Access
Network, Inc. (DBA NoaNet), a Washington nonprofit mutual corporation. NoaNet was incorporated in
February 2000 to provide a broadband communications backbone over public benefit fibers leased from
BPA throughout Washington. The network began commercial operation in January 2001.
In 2017, NoaNet issued a note in the principal amount of $2,000,000 to finance general operating expenses,
issued a note in the not-to-exceed amount of $5,000,000 to finance equipment and capital projects, and
secured a term loan in the amount of $10,200,000 to repay an outstanding note to finance capital
expenditures. In 2018, NoaNet converted the $5,000,000 note into a $3,000,000 term loan and a $2,000,000
line of credit for capital expenditures. During 2019, NoaNet obtained a $665,000 term loan for capital
expenditures. Those obligations remain outstanding at the end of 2019. The debt is not guaranteed by
NoaNet’s membership. Rather, NoaNet’s Bylaws provide that each member may be assessed in accordance
with its percentage interest in NoaNet should NoaNet not be able to pay debt service on any of the
obligations. The District’s percentage interest in NoaNet is 10.57%
In late 2018, NoaNet approached its members regarding a loan to provide bridge financing for a portion of
NoaNet’s costs pending receipt of a loan from a bank or other revenues. Subsequently, in early 2019, the
District and seven other member utilities agreed to pay for certain capital expenditures of NoaNet under the
terms set forth in a Payment Agreement dated April 1, 2019. Under the Agreement, the District agreed to
pay up to $200,000 to NoaNet, on demand, during the period of April 1, 2019, through September 30, 2020.
NoaNet will make quarterly (April 1, July 1, October 1, and January 1) interest payments on the outstanding
principal at an annual rate of 5%, commencing the first quarter after a payment is made by the District.
NoaNet will make equal quarterly principal payments beginning July 1, 2020, with all outstanding principal
and interest due in full by July 1, 2025. In October 2019, the District made a payment to NoaNet in the
amount of $85,256 under the terms of this agreement to fund capital expenditures. An additional $114,739
was requested by NoaNet in June, 2020.
NoaNet recorded a change in net position (excluding member assessments) of ($4,803,789) (unaudited) for
2019. In accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 18 The Equity Method of Accounting for
Investments in Common Stock, as well as a position statement issued by the Washington State Auditor
concerning the appropriate accounting treatment for NoaNet, a proportionate share of these losses has not
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been recorded by the District since NoaNet had a net position of $51,872,093 (unaudited) as of December
31, 2019. The District also reports no investment or liability balances related to its NoaNet membership.
Financial statements for NoaNet may be obtained by writing to: Northwest Open Access Network, 21507
42nd Avenue, SeaTac, WA 98198.

NOTE 13 – TELECOMMUNICATION SERVICES
The District has installed a fiber optic system in its service area for use by the electric utility. The District
has connected its fiber optic system with NoaNet’s fiber optic communications network and makes excess
capacity available to retail internet service providers. The District recorded broadband revenues of
$359,015 for the year ended December 31, 2019. The District recorded operations and maintenance
expenses for broadband in the amount of $157,779 in 2019. The District has a total capital investment of
$5,460,572 as of December 31, 2019, including $157,750 invested during 2019.
Broadband operations and capital activity for 2019 were as follows:
For Year Ending December 31, 2019
Operating Revenue
Wholesale fiber services to ISP's

178,606

Retail fiber services

159,350

Installation charges

2,190

Total Operating Revenues

$ 340,146

Operating Expenses
Administrative and general

31,037

Repairs & Maintenance

19,310

Tower Lease

13,346

Interconnection Access

30,320

Other Operating expenses
Total Operating Expenses

63,766
$ 157,779

Non-Operating Revenue
Customer Contributions

18,869

Capital Investment
Current year change in plant

$ 157,750

Cumulative plant

$ 5,460,572
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NOTE 14 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
The District has been guarantor on weatherization loans made by two local financial institutions to District
customers for eligible improvements included in the District’s conservation plan. Only one loan remains
and the total outstanding balance on that loan as of December 31, 2019, was $107. It will mature in April
2020. This will complete the District’s commitment.

NOTE 15 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Rate Increases - The Board of Commissioners passed a resolution in December 2019 for an average 3.5%
increase in electric rates effective for each year over the next two years for all bills rendered on or after
April 1 in the respective year. In October 2019, the Board of Commissioners passed a resolution for an
average 4.2% yearly increase in water rates and an average 5.9% yearly increase in wastewater rates for a
five-year period effective for all bills rendered on or after February 1 in the respective year.
COVID-19 – The first case of COVID-19 caused by the coronavirus in the United States was confirmed in
January 2020. On February 29, 2020, Washington State Governor Jay Inslee issued a COVID-19 emergency
proclamation and subsequent restrictions followed. In response to this crisis, the District has proactively
implemented measures to mitigate operational and financial impacts to the District and its customers.
Unfortunately, a crisis this severe will have an effect on all aspects of operations in 2020.
Because of government restrictions put in place, the District is expecting a substantial set back in our
capital plan including delays to two major substation projects and a year delay in projects to upgrade the
Central Feeder transmission. In terms of dollars, the district believes that up to $1.5 Million in
infrastructure upgrades will be postponed and compressed into a capital intensive 2021.
The District also expects to experience between $1 and $2 Million in loss of revenue for the year through
lost sales and a substantially greater likelihood of defaults as well as generally lower economic activity in
the area due to COVID-19. Because of the ever-changing nature of the situation, actual impacts for the
District in 2020 could vary substantially from these estimates.
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NOTE 16 – SEGMENT INFORMATION
The following condensed financial information is provided by Electric, Water, and Sewer operating
segments for the year ended December 31, 2019:
Condensed Statement of Net Position by Segment

Assets
Current Assets
Capital Assets, net
Other Assets
Total Assets

Electric

Water

Sewer

Interfund

System

System

System

Eliminations

$ 39,436,756
148,267,733
12,044,440

$ 5,835,935
26,696,341
157,460

$170,951
494,577
-

199,748,929

32,689,736

1,776,708

$

Total

(584,348)
(140,295)

$ 44,859,294
175,458,651
12,061,605

665,528

(724,643)

232,379,550

190,975

-

-

1,967,683

$ 201,525,637

$ 32,880,711

$665,528

$

(724,643)

$ 234,347,233

$ 12,398,879
44,320,032

$ 1,106,200
6,493,535

$

$

(601,083)
(123,560)

$ 12,911,297
50,750,995

56,718,911

7,599,735

68,289

(724,643)

63,662,292

2,669,597

201,159

-

-

2,870,756

115,969,606

20,295,022

494,577

-

136,759,205

5,027,172
161,182
1,008,278
19,970,891

2,583
4,782,212

102,662

-

5,029,755
161,182
1,008,278
24,855,765

142,137,129

25,079,817

597,239

-

167,814,185

Deferred Outflows
of Resources
Total Assets and
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

7,301
60,988

Deferred Inflows
of Resources
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for:
Debt Service
Rural Economic Development Fund
Future Capital
Unrestricted
Total Net Position
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
of Resources and Net Position

$ 201,525,637

$ 32,880,711
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Condensed Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position by Segment

Operating revenues
Operating expenses
Purchased resources
Operating and maintenance
Taxes
Depreciation
Operating expenses
Net Operating Income

Electric

Water

Sewer

Interfund

System

System

System

Eliminations

$ 65,770,693

$ 4,315,971

$ 64,401

29,540,242
18,546,568
3,101,194
9,224,460
60,412,464
5,358,229

369,462
2,214,774
221,306
862,731
3,668,273
647,698

Non-operating Revenues and Expenses
Other non-operating income (expense)

1,929,197

Interest expense
Total Non-operating Income (Expense)

(176,047)

$ 69,975,018

62,299
74
27,888
90,261
(25,860)

(176,047)
(176,047)
-

29,909,704
20,647,594
3,322,574
10,115,079
63,994,951
5,980,067

100,675

2,813

(4,400)

2,028,285

(1,429,631)
499,566

(79,947)
20,728

(984)
1,829

4,400
-

(1,506,162)
522,123

Capital Contributions

1,701,222

375,558

4,570

-

2,081,350

Change in Net Position

7,559,017

1,043,984

(19,461)

134,578,112

24,035,833

616,700

$ 142,137,129

$ 25,079,817

$597,239

Net Position, Beginning
NET POSITION, ENDING
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$

Total

8,583,540

$

-

159,230,645

-

$ 167,814,185

PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT #1 OF CLALLAM COUNTY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Condensed Statement of Cash Flows by Segment
Electric

Water

Sewer

Interfund

System

System

System

Eliminations

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

$ 10,461,863

$ 1,437,186

-

$ 11,900,053

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

(11,938,141)

(716,749)

4,689

-

(12,650,201)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

2,436,285

98,241

3,185

-

2,537,711

960,007

818,678

8,878

-

1,787,563

19,456,284

3,992,462

151,895

23,600,641

(13,866,100)

(3,916)

-

(13,870,016)

$ 4,807,224

$160,773

$ 11,518,188

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of the Year

Less Restricted Cash
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of the Year

$

6,550,191

$

193,648

$

1,004

$

Total

Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Activities
Customer Installed Capital Contributions
Increase in Fair Value of Investments

$

5,668

43,203

$

199,316
43,203

Deferred Outflow-Pension

1,083,432

152,939

1,236,371

Deferred Inflow-Pension

2,669,597

201,159

2,870,756

443,805

38,036

481,841

Deferred Outflow-Other Post-Employment Benefits
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Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
PERS 1
As of June 30th (Last 10 Fiscal Years)
2019
2018
2017
Employer's proportion of the net pension
liability:

0.092575%

2016

2015

2014

0.093531%

0.101966%

0.103275%

0.102581%

0.104573%

Employer's proportionate share of the
net pension liability:

$ 3,559,837

$ 4,177,126

$ 4,838,366

$ 5,546,354

$ 5,365,940

$ 5,267,914

Covered payroll:

$ 12,853,403

$ 12,223,134

$ 12,537,175

$ 11,996,769

$ 11,325,360

$ 11,153,818

27.70%

34.17%

38.59%

46.23%

47.38%

47.23%

67.12%

63.22%

61.24%

57.03%

59.10%

61.19%

2016

2015

2014

Employer's proportionate share of the
net pension liability as a percentage of
covered payroll:
Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total pension liability:

PERS 2/3
As of June 30th (Last 10 Fiscal Years)
2019
2018
2017
Employer's proportion of the net pension
liability:

0.116566%

0.115295%

0.124233%

0.123539%

0.122737%

0.122887%

Employer's proportionate share of the
net pension liability:

$ 1,132,252

$ 1,968,560

$ 4,316,503

$ 6,220,091

$ 4,385,463

$ 2,483,990

Covered payroll:

$ 12,700,035

$ 11,958,974

$ 12,170,290

$ 11,573,312

$ 10,863,483

$ 10,632,142

8.92%

16.46%

35.47%

53.75%

40.37%

23.36%

97.77%

95.77%

90.97%

85.82%

89.20%

93.29%

Employer's proportionate share of the
net pension liability as a percentage of
covered
payroll:
Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total pension liability:
Notes to Schedule:

Until a full 10-year trend is compiled, governments are only required to present information for those years
that information is available.
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Schedule of Employer Contributions
PERS 1
For Year Ended December 31st (Last 10 Fiscal Years)
2019
Statutorily or contractually required
contributions

$

Contributions in relation to the statutorily
or contractually required contributions

645,347

$

2016

2017

643,990

$

621,174

$

Contributions as a percentage of covered
payroll

537,101

$

506,167

599,504

537,101

506,167

-

-

-

-

-

-

$ 12,861,952

$ 12,595,366

$ 12,347,732

$ 12,247,603

$ 11,737,932

$ 10,996,146

5.02%

5.11%

5.03%

4.89%

4.58%

4.60%

2016

2015

2014

$

983,649

$

931,320

$

822,057

$

763,048

$

656,190

$

514,521

983,649

931,320

822,057

763,048

656,190

514,521

-

-

-

-

-

-

$ 12,736,509

$ 12,416,720

$ 11,987,494

$ 11,904,039

$ 11,257,908

$ 10,652,582

7.72%

7.50%

6.86%

6.41%

5.83%

4.83%

Contribution deficiency (excess)
Covered payroll

$

621,174

PERS 2/3
For Year Ended December 31st (Last 10 Fiscal Years)
2019
2018
2017

Contributions in relation to the statutorily
or contractually required contributions

599,504

2014

643,990

Contributions as a percentage of covered
payroll

Statutorily or contractually required
contributions

2015

645,347

Contribution deficiency (excess)
Covered payroll

2018

Notes to Schedule:
Until a full 10-year trend is compiled, governments are only required to present information for those years
that information is available.
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OPEB Retiree Medical Benefits
Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios (in 1,000s)
For Measurement Period Ending December 31st (Last 10 Fiscal Years*)
2018

2017

Total OPEB Liability
Total OPEB liability-beginning

$

1,912

$

1,664

Service Cost
Interest on total OPEB liability
Changes of benefit terms
Effect of economic/demographic gains or (losses)
Effect of assumption changes or inputs
Net change in total OPEB liability
Total OPEB liability-ending

$

100
69
33
332
503
2,415

$

$
$

88
66
117
248
1,912

Covered employee payroll

$ 12,595

$

12,348

$
$

Total OPEB liability as a % of covered employee payroll

19.17%

Notes to schedule
* This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years.
However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the District is showing the years for which
information is available.
* Changes of benefit terms: There are no changes in benefit terms.
* Changes of assumptions: Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect the effects of
changes in the discount rate, election, demographic and health assumptions each period.
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15.48%
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DIRECTORY OF PUBLIC OFFICIALS

Elected Commissioners
President
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Appointed Officials
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David Anderson
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Lori B. Carter
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